BY-LAWS

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

OF THE

MAHWAH PUBLIC LIBRARY

MAHWAH, NEW JERSEY

ARTICLE I - NAME

This organization shall be called "The Board of Trustees of the Free Public Library of the Township of Mahwah" (also known as the Mahwah Public Library), existing by virtue of the provisions of Chapter 54, title 40 of the Laws of the state of New Jersey, and exercising the powers and authority and assuming the responsibilities delegated to it under said statue.

ARTICLE II - TRUSTEES

Section 1.

The Board of Trustees shall consist of a maximum of nine members: one of whom shall be the Mayor of the Town, one member shall be the Superintendent of Schools, or alternate appointed by him/her, and seven members, all of whom must be residents of the township, to be appointed by the Mayor. Appointments shall be for a term of five years.

Section 2.

Any member who misses three (3) meetings in succession without prior notice may be requested to resign. Any officer may be removed from office before the expiration of the term of office for cause by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members of the Board then in office, at any regular meeting of the Board or at any special meeting of the Board called for that purpose.

Section 3.

No Board member, by virtue of his/her office, shall exercise any administrative responsibility with respect to the Library, or, as an individual, command the services of any library employee.

Section 4.

No individual Trustee may act unilaterally to make a decision for, or change a commitment of the Board unless previously authorized by a majority vote of the Board. During major construction, the person to whom primary responsibility is given shall be temporarily free of these restrictions but must report progress regularly to the Board.

ARTICLE III – OFFICERS

Section 1.

The officers shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer who shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Board. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by ballot at the next regular meeting of the Board after the vacancy occurs, for the remainder of the term so vacated.

Section 2.

Every other year, the President shall appoint a nominating committee during the regular January meeting (two months prior to the Annual Meeting). The Nominating Committee shall present a slate of officers at the regular February meeting. Additional nominations from the floor may also be presented at that time.

Section 3.

Officers shall serve a term of two years from the Annual Meeting at which they were elected. The President may not serve more than two consecutive years except under unusual circumstance when a break in continuity of leadership would cause undue disruption, such as during a major construction project. At the option of the Board, the President's term may be extended by a 2/3 majority vote, after discussion.

Section 4.

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, authorize calls for any special meetings, appoint all committees, execute all documents authorized by the Board, serve as an ex-officio voting member of all committees with the exception of the Nominating committee, and generally perform all duties associated with that office.

Section 5.

In the event of the absence of the President from a Board meeting, either the Vice President or a temporary chairperson selected by the members present shall assume and perform the duties of the President.

Section 6.

The Secretary, or designee, shall keep a true and accurate record of all proceedings of Board meetings. At least five days before the next scheduled Library Board meeting, the Secretary, or designee, shall provide the Board members with draft copies of the minutes of the prior meeting, copies of the agenda, and any reports considered essential to consideration of the agenda. Once the Board has approved the minutes, the Secretary, or designee, shall post said minutes on the library web site along with a hard copy for the library archives.

Section 7.

The Treasurer shall be responsible for the accounts and financial obligations of the Library as directed by the Board. The Treasurer's Report shall be filed for Audit.

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS

Section 1.

The regular monthly meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the third Wednesday of each month except in the months of July and August.

Section 2.

All meetings of the Board shall be opened to the public and advertised in accordance with the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act (Chapter 231.P1975).

Section 3.

The Annual Meeting, at which officers are elected, shall be scheduled during March. The Annual Meeting shall be held just before the regular meeting on the same date.

Section 4.

The business of regular meetings shall include, but not limited to the following items:

- a) Call to Order
- b) Pledge of Allegiance
- c) Roll call of Members
- d) Public Portion
- e) Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting(s)
- f) Financial Review
- g) Operational Review
- h) Old Business
- i) New Business
- i) Trustee Education
- k) Public Comment
- I) Adjournment

Section 5.

Special meetings may be called by the President, or designee, or at the written request of three members, for the transaction of business as stated in the call for the meeting. All meetings of the Board shall be opened to the public and advertised in accordance with NJ Open Meetings Act.

Section6.

A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting shall consist of five (5) members of the Board.

Section7.

Conduct of meetings: Proceeding of all meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order 2011 edition/ Procedure in Small Boards.

ARTICLE V - LIBRARY DIRECTOR

The Board shall appoint a Library Director who shall be the Administrative Officer of the Library and function under the direction and review of the Board. The director shall hold a Master's Degree in Library Science from an ALA accredited institution, and a Professional Librarian's Certificate issued by the State Board of Examiners.

ARTICLE VI – LIBRARY SERVICES

The position and duties of all employees not expressly mentioned in these By-Laws, shall be prescribed and defined from time to time by the Director and approved by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES

Section 1.

The President shall appoint committees of one or more members each for such specific purposes as the business of the Board requires.

Section 2.

Ad-hoc committees which are appointed for the study and investigation of special problems shall be considered to be discharged upon the completion of the purpose for which they had been appointed and after their final report has been made to and accepted by the Board.

Section3.

Committees shall present written reports to the Board documenting the activities at each of its meetings. The Secretary, or designee, shall file all Committee reports with the Board minutes.

Section 4.

No committee shall have other than advisory powers unless, by suitable action of the Board, is granted specific powers to act.

ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL

Section 1.

These By-laws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Board by a two-thirds affirmative vote of the members present, provided that notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given at the previous regular meeting, with a quorum being present at both meetings.

Section 2.

These By-laws shall be reviewed every five years or as needed.

Amended:

02/16/2005

09/20/2017

12/16/2020